
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, November 18, 2015 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the November 4, 2015 Meeting 

3. Certified Survey Map – 1401, 1495, and 1501 Riverside Drive 
Review and consideration of a three-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 
1401, 1495, and 1501 Riverside Drive in the City of Beloit 

4. Conditional Use Permit – 1230 House Street – Religious Institution  
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a religious 
institution in an R-1B, Single Family Residential District, for property located at 1230 House 
Street  

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

6. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Ashley Rosenbaum in the Planning Office at 
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  November 13, 2015 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, November 4, 2015 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call  
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:02pm. Commissioners Faragher,     
Johnson, Finnegan, Tinder, Moore, and Councilor Kincaid were present. Commissioners Mathis 
and Ruster were absent.  

 
2. Approval of the Minutes of the October 21, 2015 Meeting 

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Finnegan seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  
 

3. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 20 Park Avenue – James Athens 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan from Community Commercial to General Industrial for the 
property located at 20 Park Avenue (former Cub Foods building) 
 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  
 
Councilor Kincaid inquired into whether or not there was a tenant lined up. Ms. Christensen 
responded that we are not aware of a tenant or buyer for this property. He also asked when it 
would be available for lease or sale and whether there was heating and air conditioning 
present. Ms. Christensen stated that she was unaware of when it would be available and that 
the building was an open space that could be rehabbed for a future tenant or buyer.  
 
Chairperson Faragher asked about any retention needed on site. The Commission informed 
him that retention was already provided.  
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the motion. Commissioner Tinder seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  
 

4. Zoning Map Amendment – 20 Park Avenue – James Athens  
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning 
district classification from C-3, Community Commercial District, to M-1, Limited Manufacturing 
District, for the property located at 20 Park Avenue (former Cub Foods building) 
 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the motion. Commissioner Finnegan seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
  

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
The application for the Conditional Use Permit for 1503 St. Lawrence has been withdrawn by 
the owner.  Commonwealth Development’s applications for the multifamily development at 
1633 Keeler Avenue will be on the next City Council agenda.  
 

6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10pm.  
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Ashley Rosenbaum 
 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2015 
 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2015-09 

Applicant: RH Batterman Owner: Hendricks Commercial 
Properties 

Location: 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside 
Drive 

Existing Zoning: M-2, General 
Manufacturing, and C-3, Community 
Commercial 

Existing Land Use: Open Space Total Area: 23.07 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
RH Batterman, on behalf of Hendricks Commercial Properties, has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor 
Subdivision and a 3-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 1401, 1495, and 1501 Riverside Drive in 
the City of Beloit. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, 
conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City or within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction 
where there is no dedication of land to the City. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 Proposed Lot 1 is 16.12 acres and has frontage on Eclipse Blvd. Proposed Lot 2 is 6.29 acres and has frontage 
on Eclipse Blvd and Riverside Drive. Proposed Outlot 1 is approximately .66 acres and also has frontage on 
Eclipse Blvd and Riverside Drive.  

 The proposed CSM has two purposes: 
1. To separate the section of 1501 Riverside Drive that lies north of Eclipse Blvd from the rest of the 

parcel in order to create a new outlot adjacent to the Eclipse Center parcel. Breaking off the section of 
land, labeled Outlot 1 on the CSM, will allow the owner more flexibility to use this parcel in the future. 

2. A discrepancy exists between the original CSM for Lot 1 and the current legal description for    Lot 1. 
Including Lot 1 in this CSM will not change the parcel boundaries, but will help ensure consistency in 
the recording. Proposed Lot 2 combines the remainder of 1501 (south of Eclipse Blvd) with 1401 into 
one parcel. 

 The parcels at 1401 and 1501 Riverside Drive are in the C-3, Community Commercial District. The parcel at 1495 
Riverside Drive is in the M-2, General Manufacturing District. 

 The applicant initially applied for a CSM to combine Proposed Lot 2 with Proposed Lot 1. However, the proposed 
lots lie in different TIF Districts and therefore were unable to be combined into a single parcel. 

 The highway easement for Eclipse Blvd (see Location & Zoning Map) will not be affected by the land division. 
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments. 
 The application and proposed CSM are attached to this report. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map shows General Industrial and Planned Mixed Use as the most 
appropriate uses for the subject properties. This proposed land division is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
for the properties located at 1401, 1495, and 1501 Riverside Drive in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning and 
Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2015. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, Application, CSM and Resolution. 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

 



CSM-2015-09, 1401, 1495, 1501 Riverside Drive 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT  

1401, 1495, AND 1501 RIVERSIDE DRIVE IN THE CITY OF BELOIT 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 

1401, 1495, and 1501 Riverside Drive, containing 23.07 acres, is located within the jurisdiction 

of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed 

three-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

  
PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOC. #927912 AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 10 ON 

PAGES 42-43 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS, BEING ALSO A PART OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED 

SURVEY MAPS DOC. #1771790 AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 30 ON PAGES 271-273 OF 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS, SITUATED IN PARTS OF THE S.W. ¼ OF THE N.W. ¼ AND PART 

OF THE N.W. ¼ OF THE S.W. ¼ SECTION 25, AND PART OF THE S.E. ¼ OF THE N.E. ¼ AND 

PART OF THE N.E. ¼ OF THE S.E. ¼ OF SECTION 26 ALL IN T. 1 N., R. 12 E. OF THE FOURTH 

P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. Containing 23.07 acres, more or less. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

properties located at 1401, 1495, and 1501 Riverside Drive in the City of Beloit, subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and 

shall provide the Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded 

CSM by December 31, 2015. 

 

Adopted this 18
th

 day of November, 2015. 

 

 

   

  James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen,  

Community Development Director 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2015 
 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2015-11 

Applicant: Marilyn Sloniker 
 

Owner: Hope For All International 
Fellowship 
 

Location: 1230 House Street 

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Building Parcel Size: 0.35 Acre 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Marilyn Sloniker has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Religious Institution in an R-1B, Single-
Family Residential District, for the property located at 1230 House Street. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant recently purchased the subject property and intends to operate Hope For All International 
Fellowship in the former Kiddie Ranch afterschool building on the subject property. 

 The building on the subject property is 1,800 square feet and was constructed in 1962. 
 The applicant does not intend to make significant modifications to the existing building, and intends to utilize the 

adjacent public parking lot within Krueger Community Park when services are held. 
 While Religious Institutions are permitted by-right in the PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District and higher density 

residential districts, they require a Conditional Use Permit in single-family districts. 
 The subject property was used as a church more than a decade ago, and permit records show that the existing 

building was converted from a church into an afterschool facility in 2003. 
 The City’s Review Agents did not submit any comments or concerns regarding the proposed church use. 
 The application and a Location & Zoning Map are attached to this report. 
 The attached Public Notice was sent to 8 nearby property owners. Planning staff has not received any comments. 
 Findings of Fact 

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based 
on the following considerations: 

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 The proposed Religious Institution will not endanger public health or welfare. 
b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted; 

 The proposed Religious Institution is not expected to cause noise, glare, emissions, traffic 
congestion, or other externalities that will interfere with the adjacent residential uses. 

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood of the subject property; 

 As opposed to vacancy, continued occupancy of this institutional building will have a positive 
impact upon property values in the neighborhood. 

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of the surrounding property; 

 The surrounding area is fully developed. 
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar 

or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that 
it will cause a depreciation in property values; 

 N/A – The applicant is not proposing any changes. 
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to 

serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the subject property. 
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  

 Those attending the applicant’s church will utilize the large public parking area within Krueger 
Community Park, which satisfies the off-street parking requirements. 

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for the subject property. While this 
recommendation is intended to encourage single-family homes, the plan notes that small institutional uses such as 
churches are also appropriate on parcels within this category. This request and the underlying R-1B zoning classification 
are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Religious 
Institution in an R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 1230 House Street, based on the 
above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions: 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the use of the existing 1,800 square-foot building on the subject property 
as a church, including customary accessory uses. The existing sign structure must be removed completely or 
refaced to reflect the applicant’s organization by April 1, 2016. 

2. The applicant shall encourage parishioners to use the adjacent public parking lot in Krueger Park, and to limit 
their use of on-street parking in this residential area. 

3. No residential use of any kind, including transitional or emergency housing, is allowed on the subject property. 
4. The applicant shall maintain, and may not remove, the existing vegetative buffer along the southern and eastern 

perimeter of the subject property. 
5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission 

and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may 
approve minor changes administratively. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Photo, Location & Zoning Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B 

Photo of Existing Structure 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B 

 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B  



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B 



November 18 Staff Report, CUP, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B  

 
 

 


